
throughout the world. He paid tribute to the 
excellent work done by the members of the Com
mission and to the concrete attitude they .had 
adopted with regard to both the letter and the 
spirit of the Charter. If they could tell all the 
women of the world how their decisions were 
reached and what recommendations had ·been 
formulated, as they had done in the report, 
many obstacles in the way of developJ?ent would 
be surmounted. 

He had noted with pleasure that the women 
members of the Commission had been able to 
overcome some of· the delicate procedural as
pects of their problem, and he recommended the 
Economic and Social Council to consider the 
report with great tact and attention. 

'It was obvious, in view of the prominent part 
played by women throughout the world, that t~e 
principle of legal equality of men and women m 
all countries had to be accepted, and that those 
countries where women 'did not en joy such rights 
'should grant them. Woman was equal to man 
in the construction of a free society and should 
have the same rights without discrimination of 
race, sex or creed. The world would move· for
ward with greater strength if all obstacles were 
removed to the participation of all peoples in the 
establishment of democracy. 

He hoped that the Council would approve 
the report. He had just received a document 
presented by the representative of the United 
Kingdom and he wished to reserve the right to 
discuss it in the meeting of the Committee of the 
Whole, when he would have certain proposals 
to make to meet the wishes expressed in the re
port by the members of the Commission. 

The meeting rose at 1.30 p.m; 

SEVENTY -FIFTH MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
o'n Wednesday, 19 March 1947, at 3 p.m. 

President: Sir Ramaswami MuoALIAR (India). 

45. Continuation of the discussion of .the 
report of the Commission. on the 
Status of Women ' 

Mr. SANTA CRuz (Chile) stressed the im
portance of the role of women in Chile, which, 
though a small country, had been the first in 
Latin America to employ women in teaching, 
in industry and in corpmerce, and to eriact laws 
for the pro.tection of women in their work. 

Although the report of the Commission might 
have some practical defects, the Government of 
Chile was in full agreement with the basic prin
ciples and aims contained in chapter X of the 
report. , Those principles were in line with the 
objectives of the Charter and with the expressed 

' 

ordre dans le monde entier. II rend hommage 
au travail accompli par les membres de la Com
mission et a !'attitude positive qu'ils ont adoptee 
en ce qui conceme a la fois !'esprit et l;:L lettre 
de la Charte. S'ils pouvaient dire aux femmes 
du ·monde entier ·de quelle maniere leurs deci
sions ont ete prises et quell~ recommandations 
ont ete formulees, comme ils l'ont fait dans le 
rapport, bien des obstacles qui s' opposent encore 
au progres seraient surmontes. 

II a constate avec plaisir que les membres 
feminins de la Commission ont reussi a resoudre 
certains aspects de procedure delicats, et il 
recommande au Conseil economique et social 
d'examiner le rapport. avec beaucoup de tact 
et d' attention. 

Etant donne le role primordial que jouent 
. les femmes dans le monde enti~r, il est evident 
que !'on doit adopter le principe de l'egalite 
juridique des hommes et des femmes dans tous 
les pays et que ceux ou les femmes ne beneficient 
pas de ces droits doivent les leur accorder. La 
femme est l'egale de l'homme dans l'etablisse
ment d'un systeme social libre; les memes droit~ 
doivent prevaloir sans distinction de race, de 
sexe ou de religion. Le monde progressera plus 
rapidement si 1' on supprime tous les obstacles 
qui s'opposent a la participation de tous a l'eta
blissement de la democratic. 

M. Kaminski espere que le Conse~ ap
prouvera le rapport. II vient de recevoir un 
document soumis par le .representant 1 du 
Royaume-Uni et desire se reserver le droit de 
le discuter au cours de la reunion du Comite 
plenier. II aura a ce moment-Ia cert;:Lines propo
sitions a presenter pour repondre a:ux desiderata 
exprimes dans ce rapport par les membres de 
la Commission. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 30. 

SOIXANTE-QUINZI~ME SEANCE. 

Tenue a Lake Success, New~York, 
le mercredi 19 mars 1947, a 15 heures. 

President: Sir Ramaswami MunALIAR (Inde). 

45. Suite de Ia discussion sur le rapport 
de Ia Cqmmission, de Ia condition de 
Ia femme 

M. SANTA CRUZ (Chili) souligne le role 
important que jouent les femmes au Chili. Si le 
Chili est un petit pays, il a ete le premier en 
Amerique latine·a permettre aux femmes l'acGes 
aux carrieres de l'enseignement et aux emplois 
de l'industrie et' du commerce et a mettre en 
vigueur des lois pour les prot~ger dans leur 
travail. 

Tout en reconnaissant que le rapport de la 
Commission n'est pas parfait du poil1t de vue 
pratique, le Gouvemement du Chili approuve 
pleinement les principes et les buts fondamen
tallx enonces au chapitre X du rapport. Ces 
principes sont conf~rmes aux. objectifs de Ia 

154 



intention of the President of Chile to achieve 
equality between men and women in the poli
tical~ social, economic, cultural and legal fields. 

Mr. KIRPALANI (India) associated himself 
w:ith the remarks made by the President at the 
outset of the debate, and complimented the 
Commission on the excellence of its report. 

'I)le representative of India added that, in 
the past, attempts had been made to confine 
women to the purely domestic sphere. Women 
now insisted on playing their full part and should 
be allowed to do so. The justice of their cause 
was acknowledged, but little had so far been 
done to implement their demands. 

·In the observations on the report of the Com
mission submitted by the representative of the 
United Kingdom (document E/353) / the latter 
suggested that many of the Commission's recom
mendations concerned subjects which were pri
marily within the competence of other bodies. 
Mr. Kirpalani could not however agree with 
the United Kingdom delegation that the subject 
of prostitution, for example, should be dealt with 
solely by the Social Commission. 

In conClusion, the representative of India 
suggested that if women wished to play an equal 
role with men in solving the problems of human
ity, the membership. of the Commission should 
include not only women, but also men. At the 
same time, he hoped that women would be given 
greater representation on the Social Commission 
and on the Commission on Human Rights. 

Mr. PHILLIPS (United Kingdom) drew atten
tion to the observations on the Commission's 
report submitted by his delegation, and explained 
that their purpose was to suggest the best prac
tical approach to the problem of achieving an 
equal status for women in the world as a whole, 
a subject to which the United Kingdom Govern
ment attached considerable importance. 

The problems facing the Commission were 
deep-rooted and of long standing. Any recom
mendations of the Commission or of the Council 
would be effective only to the extent to which 
they took full account of the difficulties involved. 
An import;mt task of the Commission was there
fore to examine the causes of discrimination 
against women in different parts of ,the world 
and to draw attention to the customs and prac
tices at the root of that discrimination. In the 
opinion of the United Kingdom Government; 
emphasis should be placed on education and 
publicity as the means of bringing about the 
necess~ry changes. L,egislation alone could not be 
fully effective. 

1 See Annex 22~ 

· Charte et aux intentions du President du Chili, 
qui a declare vouloir dom1er aux femmes les 
memes droits qu'aux hommes dans les domaines 
politique, social, economique, culturel et juri-
clique. · -

M. KIRPALANI (lnde) s'associe aux remarques 
formulees par le President a l'ouverture des 
debats et felicite Ia Commission de son excellent 
rapport. 

Le representant de l'Inde ajoute que, dans 
le passe, on a essaye· de limiter l'activite des 
femmes aux occupations purement domestiques. 
Les femmes veulent maintenant jouer pleinernent 
leur role et l'on doit leur en donner la possibilite. 
On a reconnu que leur cause etait juste, mais on 
n'a rien fait jusqu'ici pour satisfaire a leurs 
exigences. 

Dans les observations qu'il a presentees sur le 
rapport de Ia Commission (document E/353) \ 
le representant du Royaume-Uni a emis !'idee 
qu'un grand nombre des recommandations de Ia 
Commission se rapportent a des sujets qui reli:
vent essentiellement de Ia competence d'autres 
organismes. M. Kirpalani ne peut cependant 
admettre, comme le fait le representant du 
Royaume-Uni, que la question de la prostitu
tion, par exemple, releve uniquement de Ia 
Commission des questions sociales. 

Le representant de l'lnde termine en disant 
que, si les femmes veulent contribuer au meme 
titre que les hommes a resoudre les problemes qui 
se posent a l'humanite, Ia Commission devra 
comprendre non seulement des femmes, mais 
aussi des hommes. II espere egalement que les 
femmes pourront etre representees en plus grand 
nombre a Ia Commission des questions sociales 
et a Ia Commission des droits de l'hommc. 

M. PHILLIPS (Royaume-Uni) attire !'atten
tion du Conseil sur les observations faites par sa 
delegation au -sujet du rapport de la Commission' 
et explique qu'elles ont pour but d'indiquer Ia 
meilleure fat;on d'aborder pratiquement le pro
bleme relatif a !'obtention, par les femmes du 
monde entier, d'un statut ,egal a celui des 
hommes; le Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni 
attache une importance copsiderable a _cette 
question. . 

Les problemes devant lesquels le trouve Ia 
Commission ont des causes profondes et loin
taines. On ne pourra donner effet aux recom
mandations de Ia Commission ou du Conseil que 
dans Ia mC;Sure ou elles tiendront pleinement 
compte des difficultes de Ia question. Une des 
taches importantes de Ia Commission sera done 
d' etudier les causes des mesures discriminatoires 
qui existent a l'egard des femmes dans differentes 
parties du monde, et d'attirer !'attention sur les 
coutumes et les pratiques qui sont a l'origine· de 
ces mesures. De !'avis du Gouvernement du 
Royaume-Uni, i1 importe de souligner le fait·que 
!'education et Ia propagande sont les moyens qui 
permettront de realiser les changements qui 

. s'imposent. La legislation, a elle seule, ne peut 
resoudre le probleme de fat;on efficace. 

1 Voir l'annexe 22. 

155 



Mr. Phillips regretted that the report of the 
Commission contained no clear-cut programme 
of work, but confined itself to stating pr!nciples 
and aims. The resolution included· at the end of 
the observations submitted by his delegation was 
designed to remedy that situation and to provide 
an immediate programme for the Commission. 

With regard to the organization of the Com
mission's work, Mr. Phillips pointed out that 
paragraphs 7 and 8 of the observations of the 
United Kingdom delegation (document E/353) 
were not intended to exclude entirely from the 
purview of the Commission the subjects men
tioned, but merely to suggest that the Commis
sion should concentrate on the aspects which 
might involve discrimination on the grounds of 

, sex, whether in the political, economic or social 
fields. ·The Commission should, of course, take 
full account of what was being done by other 
organs of the United Nations in matters which 
affected women. An effort should, however, be 
made to ·avoid duplication and to achieve the 
closest possible collaboration on questions con
cerning more than one organ or agency. 

The problem of prostitution, for example, 
was one which affected society as a whole, and 
not only women. The United Kingdom delega
tion therefore believed that it ought to be con
sidered in its broad social context by the Social 
Commission. It would obviously be unwise for 
two commissions to study the same subject. 

In conclusion, Mr. Phillips said that while 
his Government fully supported the aspirations 
of the members of the Commission on the Status 
of Women, it hoped that the Council would 
adopt its suggestions as an alternative, and in 
its opinion a more practical approach to the 
problem, laying down a concrete programme of 
work for the Commission. 

Mr. NASH (New Zealand) suggested that the· 
importance of the subject of the Commission's 
report was amply demonstrated by the numerous 
references in the Charter to the necessity of 
equality between men and women. There was 
nothing in chapter X of the report, setting for!h 
the aims of the Commission, to which the mem
bers of the Council were not already bound by 
the Charter. The danger of overlapping and 
duplication of effort could probably be avoided 
by close co-operation between the Commission 
on the Status of Women and the ILO, the 
Social Commission and the Commission on 
Human Rights. 

Women were achieving a prominent position 
in education in all countries and could thus have 
a great influence on the minds of the young. 
The injustices from which they had suffered 
in the past would certainly be removed now 

M. Phillips regrette que le rapport de Ia Com
mission ne contienne aucun programme de tra
vail defini et se contente d'enoncer des principes 
et des buts. La resolution qui figure a la fin des 
observations presentees par sa delegation a pour 
but de remedier a cette insuffisance et de fournir 
a la Commission un programme immediat de 
travail. 

En ce qui concerne !'organisation du travail 
de la Commission, M. Phillips signale que les 
paragraphes 7 et 8 des observations presentees 
par la delegation du Royaume-Uni (document 
E/353) ne visent pas a supprimer entierement 
du 'mandat de la Commission les sujets qu'ils 
mentionnent, mais seulement a proposer a la 
Commission de concentrer ses efforts sur les 
questions a propos desquelles peut ' se poser le 
probleme des mesures discriminatoires contre les 
femmes dans les domaines politique, economique 
ou social. Bien entendu, la Commission doit tenir 
pleinement compte de ce que font les autres 
organes des Nations Unis dans les questions qui 
concernent la femme. On doit s'efforcer cepen-

. dant d'eviter le double emploi et de realiser Ia 
collaboration la plus etroite possible dans les 
questions qui interessent a la fois plusieurs or
ganiSJ?eS ou institutions. 

Le probleme de la prostitution, par exemple, 
est un probleme qui touche la societe tout en
tiere et non pas seulement les femmes. La delega
tion du Royaume-Uni estime done que la Com
mission des question sociales doit l'etudier dans 
le vaste domaine de ses repercussions sociales. II 
serait manifestement contraire au bon sens que 
deux commissions etudient le meme sujet. 

Pour conclure, M. Phillips declare que son 
Gouvernement, tout en donnant son plein appui 
aux aspirations des membres de la Commission 
de Ia condition de Ia femme, espere que le Con-
seil adoptera ~es propositions qu'il a presentees 
comme une fac;on nouvelle et, a son avis, plus 
pratique, d'aborder le probleme et d'etablir un 
programme de travail concret pour la Com
mission. 

Selon M. NAsH (Nouvelle-Zelande), les nom
breux passages dans lesquels Ia Charte fait allu
sion a la necessite de realiser l'egalite entre 
l'homme et la femme montrent amplement !'im
portance de la question dont traite le rapport de 
la Commission. Le chapitre X du rapport, qui 
enonce les buts de la Commission, ne contient 
rien a quoi les membres du Conseil ne soient 
deja tenus par la Charte. On pourrait probable
ment eviter les risques de chevauchement et de 
double emploi par une etroite collaboration entre 
Ia Commission de Ia condition de Ia femme 
d'une part, l'OIT, la Commission des questions 
sociales et Ia Commission des droits de l'homme 

, d'autre part. 

Dans tous les pays, les femmes jouent un role 
preponderant dans l'enseignement et elles peu
vent ainsi avoir une grande influence sur Ia 
formation de la jeunesse. Les injustices dont 
elles ont souffert dans le passe disparaitront cer-

156 



that the problem was being· seriously studied. 
When they had been removed, the Commission 
should attempt to ensure that women realized 
their true role in the world and were prepared 
to fulfil it. 

Full employment ought to apply equally to 
men and women, and it should no longer be 
contended that woman's place was in the home. 
The sex factor should only be considered when 
it had an influence on ability to fulfil a particular 
task, and pay ought to be given according to the 
value of the work perfermed. 

Mr. Nash pointed out that the principles and 
aims of the Commission, as expressed in chapter 
X of the report, were already operative in New 
Zealand, which he believed to have been the 
first country to give the franchise to women. · 
New Zealand had universal ·adult suffrage. 
Women could not only vote, but could also 
hold office. 

Describing the system of children's allowances 
and widows' pensions paid in his country, Mr. 
Nash pointed out that any discrimination which 
existed in that connexion was in favour of 
women, since pensions paid to widowers were 
not paid on the same basis. 

There had been some discrimination in the 
past against women teachers, who had been 
obliged to give up their work upon marriage; 
that provision had however lapsed as a result 
of the recent war. Women were also employed 
on railways and on trams. Mr. Nash knew of 
no discrimination against them in his country. 

He considered ·that much credit was due to 
the Commission on the Status of Women for 
its report, in particular for chapters X and XI. 

Mr. MoRozov (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) recalled that the Commission on the 
Status of Women had been created by the Coun
cil in order to make rec()mmendations for the 
promotion of women's rights in the political, 
economic, civil, social and cultural fields and for 
the implementation of the principle of equal 
rights for men and women. He was happy to say 
that in his country su<:h rights were not merely 
recognized, but protected by law. The· report of 
the Commission was to be considered as the first 
step towards the solution of its problems. 

Since the report would receive careful exami
nation in committee, Mr. Morozov proposed to 
confine his remarks to the United Kingdom 
proposal. It was his impression that the United 
Kingdom delegation feared that the Commission 
might go too far •in the implementation of its 
aims. He could not agree either with that atti
tude or with the statement contained in para
graph 4 of the United Kingdom proposal: "The 

tainement, maintenant que ce probleme fait 
l'objet d'un examen serieux. Quand ces injus
tices auront disparu, Ia Commission devra tenter 
de s'assurer que les femmes comprennent leur 
veritable role dans le monde et sont pretes a le 
remplir. 

Le principe du plein emploi doit s'appliquer 
egalement aux hommes et aux femmes et l'on 
n'a plus le droit de soutenir que' Ia place de Ia 
femme est au foyer. II ne faut tenir compte du 
facteur sexe que lorsqu'il a une influence stir 
!'aptitude a remplir un emploi particulier, et Ia 
remuneration d'un travail doit etre en fonction 
de Ia valeur du travail accompli. 

M. Nash signale que les principes et les buts 
de Ia Commission, tels qu'on Ies trouve enonces 
au chapitre X du rapport, sont deja en vigueur 
en Nouvelle-Zelande. Ce pays a etc le premier 
au monde a accorder aux femmes le droit de 
vote. La Nouvelle-Zelande a etabli le suffrage 
universe! pour les adultes. Les femmes non seule
ment possedent le droit de vote, mais ont egale
ment acces aux fonctions publiques. 

Decrivant le regime des indemnites pour 
charges de famille et des pensions de veuves qui 
est en vigueur dans son pays, M. Nash signale 
que, s'il y a une inegalite de traitement dans ce 
domaine, elle est en faveur des femmes, puisque 
les pensions accordees aux veufs ne sont pas 
calculees sur.la meme base. 

Certaines mesures discriminatoires ont jadis 
etc appliquees contre les femmes membres de 
l'enseignement qui devaient renoncer a leur poste 
lorsqu'dles se mariaient; Ia demiere guerre a 
mis fin a !'application de cette loi. On emploie 
aussi des femmes dans les chemins de fer et les 
tramways. M. Nash n'a pas connaissance de:; 
mesures discriminatoires contre les femmes en 
Nouvelle-Zelande. 

II faut feliciter Ia Commission de la condi
tion de Ia femme pour le rapport qu'elle a re
dige et notamment pour les chapi~res X et XI. 

M. MoRozov (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) rappelle que le Conseil a crec 
la Commission de· Ia condition de la femme en 
vue d'elaborer des recommandations propres a 
favoriser Ies droits de Ia femme dans les do
maines politique, economique, civil, social et cul
ture!, et a mettre en reuvre le principe de !'ega
lite des droits des hommes et des femmes. Dans 
son pays, heureusement, ces droits sont non 
seulement reconnus, mais proteges par Ia loi. Le 
rapport de Ia Commission doit constitt!ier le 
premier pas vers Ia solution des problemes qui se 
posent a Ia Commission~ 

Comme le rapport sera etudie soigneusement 
en comite, M. Morozov ne fera porter ses obser
vations que sur la proposition du Royaume-Uni. 
II a !'impression que Ia delegation du Royaume
Uni craint de voir Ia Commission aller trop loin 
dans l'accomplissement des taches qu'elle s'est 
assignees. II ne peut approuver cette attitude, ni 
Ia declaration qui figure au paragraphe 4 de Ia 
proposition du Royaume-Uni: "La condition 

157 



poor status of women in many undeveloped 
regions of the world is founded not primarily 
on legal systems, but on beliefs and customs of 
long standing of whatever origin." The rights of 
women, in particular their political rights, thus 
appeared to be given secondary importance; 
that was contrary both to the Charter of the 
United Nations and to the General Assembly 
resolution on the political rights of women.1 

The United Kingdom proposal further sug
gested that the Commission should not deal with 
economic rights for ·women. Such a suggestion 
was not acceptable. The Commission's report 
quite properly outlined the Commission's aims 
in the field of economic rights. 2 The fact that 
certain specialized agencies were already dealing 
with some aspects of that problem did not pre
clude the promotion of economic rights for 
women from being one of the most important 
tasks of the Commission. 

While Mr. Morozov agreed with the United 
Kingdom representative that prostitt:1tion repre
sented a general social problem, he felt that it 
was desirable that the Commission on the Status 
of. Women should deal with it in co-operation 
with the Social Commission. 

Mr. Morozov reserved the right to make ob
servations concerning the Commission's report 
when it was considered by the appropriate com
mittee. 

1
Mr .. PHILLIPS (United Kingdom) stated in 

reply to the representative of the Union of Soviet 
. Socialist Republics that the purpose of the 

United Kingdom delegation in submitting its 
proposal had been not to hinder but to assist the 
Commission in implementing its aims. . He 
stressed that chapter X of the Commission's 
report, entitled "Programme of future ,work", 
did not actually contain a programme. It was 
for that very reason that the United Kingdom 
delegation had found it necessary to suggest an 
immediate programme of work, as contained in 
the first paragraph of the United Kingdom 
resolution. As to paragraph 4 of the · United 
Kingdom proposal, which had been quoted by 
the representative of the Union of Soviet Social
ist Republics, it merely stated a sociological fact 
which should be recognized as such. 

Mr. Phillips remarked that the representative 
of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics had 
misunderstood his earlier 'statement regarding 
econm;nic rights. He had not implied that the 
Commission should refrain from dealing with 
the. subject, but had merely pointed out that 
there were other organizations, such as the ILO, 
operating in that field, and that it was essential 
to avoid duplication. With regard to prostitu
tion,. in the inter,ests of economy, concentration 
of effort and co-ordination of policy, the primary 
responsibility for handling t~at problem should 

1 See Resolutions adopted by the General Assembly 
during the second part of its first session, resolution 
56 (I), page 90. 

2 See Supplement No. 2, page 10. 

malheuret:1se de la femme dans de nombreuses 
regions moins avancees du monde n' est pas 
·fondee essentiellement sur des systemes juri
diques, mais sur des croyances et des coutumes 
ancestrales de quelque origine que ce soit." Les 
droits de la femme, . en particulier dans le do
maine politique, semblent ainsi revetir une im
portance secondaire; cette attitude est contraire 
aussi bien ala Charte des Nations Unies qu'a la 
resolution de 1' Assemblee generale sur les droits 
politiques de la femme. 

Le Royaume-Uni ·propose, en outre, que la 
Commission ne s'occupe pas des droits de la 
femme dans le domaine economique. Une telle 
proposition est inacceptable. Le rapport de la 
Commission a nettement defini les buts de la 
Commission en ce qui conceme les droits eco
nomiques2. Si certaines institutions specialisees 
s'occupent deja en partie de ce probleme, cela 
n'empeche pas que le developpement des droits 
economiques de la femme constitue l'une des 
taches les plus importantes de la Commission. 

M. Morozov p~nse, comme le representant du 
Royaume-Uni, que la prostitution est un pro
bleme social d' ordre general; il estime cependant 
que la Commission de la condition de la femme 
devrait s'en occuper en collaboration avec la 
Commission des questions sociales. 

M. Morozov se reserve le droit de presenter 
des observations sur le rapport de la Commis
sion quand il viendra devant le comite compe-· 
tent. 

I 

M. PHILLIPS (Royaume-Uni) declare, en re
ponse au representant de !'Union des Repu
bliques socialistes sovietiques que la delegation 
du Royaume-Uni, en soumettant sa proposition, 
n'a pas voulu empecher, mais, au contraire, aider 
la Commission a accomplir sa tache. 11 souligne 
que le chapitre X du rapport de la Commission, 
intitule "Programme futur" ne contient en rea
lite aucun programme. C' est pour cette raison 
meme que sa delegation a juge necessaire de pro: 
poser un programme de travail immediat qui 
figure·au premier paragraphe de la resolution du 
Royaume-Uni. Le representant de !'Union des 
Republiques socialistes sovietiques a cite le para
graphe 1: de la proposition du Royaume,-Uni, 
mais il ne s'agit que d'une constatation d'ordre 
sociologiqu,e qu'il faut reconnaitre comme telle. 

M. Phillips declare que le representan.t de 
l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques 
n'a pas bien compris sa declaration anterieure 
sur les droits economiques. Il n'a pas voulu dire 
que la Commission devait s'abstenir d'etudier la 
question, il a simplement indique qu'il existait 
d'autres organisations telles que l'OIT ·dont 
l'activite s'exen;ait dans ce domaine, et qu'il 
etait essentiel d'eviter le double emploi. En ce 
qui c0ncerne la pros~itution, des raisons d'eco
nomie ainsi que la necessite de concentrer les 
efforts et d'adopter une politique commune obli-

1 Voir les Resolutions adoptees par l'AssembUe generale 
pendant Ia seconde partie de sa premiere session, resolu
tion 56 (I), page 90. 

2 Voir le Supplement No.2, page 10. 

158 



be allocated to a single body, preferably the 
Social Commission, though the Commission on 
the Status of Women would, of course, continue 
to take an interest in the subject. 

Mr. ARCA PARRO (Peru) said that the Com
mission appeared to attach undue importance 
to the juridical aspect of its work. He could 
raise no objec,tion to the aims stated in chapter 
X of the report, which contained nothing new. 
He wished to call attention, however,-to the fact 
that the' Commission supported the statement 
contained in the International Labour Organiza
tion's Declaration of Philadelphia, adopted on 
17 May 1944, to the effect that "all human 
beings, irrespective of race, creed or sex, have 
the right to pursue both their material well
being and spiritual development in conditions of 
freedom and of economic security and equal 
opportunity." Nevertheless, the Commission's 
programme failed to follow the spirit of the 
Declaration, since it concentrated on the juridi
cal aspect of the problem of women's rights and 
neglected the economic aspect, as well as the 
fact that the status of women was closely linked 
with economic development. Consequently the 
Commission had established an inadequate and 
conservative programme, whiCh contained no 
new concepts to fit a changing world. He felt 
that greater emphasis should have been placed 
on economic and social questions, which formed 
the background for legislative action. 

Mr. Area Parr6 expressed surprise that, con
servative as it was, attempts were being made 
to restrict the Commis.sion's programme. He was 
not clear as to the meaning of the United King-, 
dom proposal. Should the United Kingdom 
resolution be the only resolution adopted by the 
Council with respect to the Commission, he 
"rould be unable to support it, since the only 
portion with which he was ih agreement was the 
recommendation that certain tasks were to be 
performed by the Secretariat. The first para
graph of the United Kingdom resolution implied 
that the Commission had failed to accomplish 
constructive work, and assigned to it a task of 
legal research which was of little practical value. 
Other provisions in the resolution would result 
in work for the Secretariat, but not for the 
Commission. Mr .. Area Parr6 inquired whether 
the intention was to curtail drastically the scope 
of the Commission's activities. ' 

He agreed with Mr; Nash that in certain 
countries legal statutes were more favourable to 
women than to men. That was only right, since 
from the biological point of view women n~
quired greater care and consideration. In view 
of recent legislative progress in certain small 
countries and in undeveloped ' countries, the 
Commission's political programme contained 
nothing new. He insisted that the Commission's 
aims could· not be realized unless the Commis
sion carried the rtruggle for women's rights into 

gent a confier I' etud~ de ce probleme a un 
organisme unique, de preference la Commission 
des questions sociales, ce qui n'empechera pas, 
naturellement, la Commission de la condition de 
la femme de continuer a s'interesser a la qqes
tion. 

M. AReA PARRO (Perou) estime que la Com
mission semble attacher une importance exageree 
au cote juridique de sa tache. II ne peut elever 
d'objection contre les buts enonces au chapitre 
X du rapport, qui ne contient rien de ne'uf. II 
desire, toutefois, attirer !'attention du Conseil sur 
le fait que la Commission approuve cette partie 
de la Declaration de Philadelphie, adoptee le 17 
'mai 1944 par l'OIT, ou il est dit: "tous les 
etres humains, quels que soient leur race, leur 
croyance ou leur sexe, ont le droit de poursuivre 
leur progres materiel et leur developpement spi- · 
rituel dans la liberte, la securite economique et 
avec des chances gales". Cependant, la Com
mission n'a pas respecte, dans son programme, 
!'esprit de cette d~claration, puisqu'elle a con
centre son attention sur !'aspect juridique du pro
bleme des droits de la femme, qu'elle a laisse de · 
cote l'aspect economique et n'a pas tenu compte 
du fait que la condition de la femme est etroite
ment liee au progres economique. Le programme 
etabli par la Commission est done insuffisant, il 
manque de hardiesse et ne contient aucune idee 
neuve susceptible de convenir a un monde en 
evolution. II y aurait lieu, ajoute-t-il, de donner 
plus d'importance aux questions economiques et 
sociales qui forment la base de !'action legislative. 

M. Area Parr6 se montre surpris des tentatives 
que l'on fait actuellement pour restreindre le 
programme de la Commission, programme qui 
est deja tres modere. Le sens de la proposition du 
Royaume-Uni ne lui apparait pas tres clairement. 
Si la resolution du Royaume-Uni devait etre la 
seule des propositions de la Commission a etre 
adoptee par le Conseil, il ne pourrait l'appuyer; 
en .effet, la seule partie qu'il apprquve est celle 
.qui recommande de confier certaines taches au 
Secretariat. Le premier paragraphe de la resolu
tion du Royaume-Uni laisse entendre que la 
Commission n'autait pas accompli d'reuvre cons
tructive et lui assign~ en consequence des re
'cherches d'ordre juridique d'une valeur pratique 
limitee. D'autres dispositions de la resolution 
auraient pour effet de donner du travail au 
Secretariat, et non a la Commission. M. Area 
Parr6 demande si I' on n'a ·pas voulu limiter con~ 
siderablement le champ d'action de la Com
mtsston. 

II pense, comme M. Nash, que, dans certains 
pays, la legislation est plus favorable aux femmes 
qu'aux hommes; ce n'est que juste, puisque, du 
point de vue 'biologique, les femmes ont besoin 
de plus de soins et de plus d'egards. En raison 
des progres recents qui se sont produits dans la 
legislation de certains petits pays et de pays in
suffisamment developpes, le programme de la 
Commission ne contient rien de neuf du point de 
vue politique. La Commission, souligne l'orateur,. 
ne pourra pas atteindre les buts qui lui ont ete 

159' 



the economic field. He opposed the United 
Kingdom proposal but declared that he was pre
pared to support any resolution endorsing the 
recommendations of the Commission, since he 
believed that the Coinmission deserved to be 
given an opportunity to continue its work with
out 4ndue restrictions. 

Mr. STINEBOWER (United States of America) 
state<;! that his country had always considered 
the subject of women's rights to be one of ,great 
importance. Although women in the United 
States had achieved a large measure of equality 
with men, there still remained certain problems 
in that field. He recalled that it had been the 
United States delegation which had proposed 
that the Sub-Commission on the Status of 
Women should be raised to the status of a Com
mission, in recognition of the fact that there still 
existed numerous inequities of law and custom 
in the world with respect to women's rights. 

The United Kingdom proposal had been criti
cized because it presumably wished to restrict 
the work of the Commission. Mr. Stinebower 
emphasized that the Commission's report did 
not contain a programme of work, a fact which 
was most regrettable. It was surely the Council's 
desire that the Commission should have positive 
tasks to perform. He supported the United 
Kingdom proposal. The preparation of a ques
tionnaire on the legal status and treatment of 
women was also important; the study of the 
subject by the Commission would lend weight 
to its subsequent recommendations. 

With regard to the Commission's proposal 
that the Secretary-General should be requested 
to prepare a questionnaire concerning economic 
rights for women, Mr. Stinebower remarked that 
the ILO had already circulated a detailed ques
tionnaire on the same subject to its member 
Governments. He suggested, therefore, that the 
information coll_ected by the ILO might be made 
available to the Commission. 

He supported the recommendation that the 
Secretariat should be asked to act as a clearing 
house for the exchange of information on the 
use of the franchise. He also agreed with the 
Commission's suggestion that the Secretary
General should study the question of regional 
conferences and report to the Commission before 
any action was taken by the Commission or by 
the Council. 

As to the Commission's recommendation with 
respect to adult suffrage, he believed that the· 
Commission should be asked to make a further 
study of the problem and to make suggestions 
concerning possible measures to be taken. Simi
larly, the recommendation concerning the codi
fication of national legislation giving equal rights 
to women might be referred back to the C~m
mission for further study and clarification. 

fixes tant qu'elle ne portera pas la lutte pour les 
droits de Ja femme sur le terrain economique. II 
est opppse a la proposition du Royaume-Uni, 
mais il est pret a donner son appui a toute reso
lution qui sanction~erait la recommandation de 
la Commission, car; a son avis, i1 faut permettre 
a la Commission d~ poursuivre son reuvre sans 
entraves inutiles. 

M. STINEBOwEri (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) 
declare que son pays a toujours pense que la 
question des droits de Ia femme etait d'une 
grande importance. Les femmes joui.Ssent, aux 
Etats-Unis, a peu pres des memes droits que les 
hommes; neanmoins, il reste certaines difficultes 
a resoudre dans ce domaine. C'est la delegation 
des Etats-Unis. qui a propose d' elever la Sous
Comrnission de la condition de la femme au 
rang de Commission, pot,Ir la raison que, dans le 
domaine des droits de la femme, il existe encore, 
daas le monde, de nombreuses injustices dans les 
lois et les coutumes. 

La proposition du Royaume-Uni a fait l'objet 
de critiques. parce qu'on s'est imagine qu'elle vou
lait restreindre les travaux de la Commission. 
M. Stinebower souligne que le rapport de la 
Commission ne contient pas de programme de 
travail, ce qui est fort regrettable. Le Conseil 
tient surement a ce que la Commission fasse 
reuvre utile. M. Stinebower appuie done la 
proposition du Royaume-Uni. II est egalement 
fort important de preparer un questionnaire sur 
Ia condition legale et le traitement de la femme. 
Si la Commission examine Ia question, les re
commandations qu' elle formulera par Ia suite 
n'en auront que plus de poids. 

La Commission a propose d'inviter le Secre
taire general a preparer un questionnaire sur les 
droits de Ia femme dans le domaine economique. 
A ce propos, M. Stinebower fait remarquer que 
l'OIT a deja envoye a ses differents membres 
un questionnaire detaille sur cette question. On 
pourrait, suggere l'orateur, mettre a la disposi
tion de Ia Commission les renseignements ras
sembles par l'OIT. 

M. Stinebower appuie Ia recommandation 
selon laquelle le Secretariat devrait servir d'or
gane central pour l'echange des informations 
concernant l'exercice du droit de vote. II est 
d'avis egalement, comme l'a propose la Commis
sion, que le Secretaire general etudie la question 
des conferences regionales et fasse rapport a la 
Commission avant toute decision par la Com
mission ou par le Conseil. 

Pour ce qui est de Ia recommandation ·de Ia 
Commission relative au droit de vote pour les 
adultes; il y aura lieu d'inviter Ia Commission a 
poursuivre !'etude du probU:me et a faire des 
propositions en ce qui concerne les mesures a 
prendre. Dans le meme ordre d'idees, la recom
mandation relative a Ia codification des diverses 
legislations nationales en vue d'accorder l'egalite 
des droits a la femme pourra etre renvoyee a la 
Commission· qui en poursuivra I' etude et la mise 
au point. 

l60 



Mr. Stinebo\yer could not agree with the 
Commission's suggestion that the establishment 
of 'a co-ordinating agency for non-governmental 
organizations interested in the problems of 
women should ,be encouraged in each country. 
He felt that the free and voluntary character 
of private organizations would be impaired by 
such action. Should any such organizations apply 
for consultative status, their applications would 
be considered by the Council NGO Committee, 
which was entrusted with that task. He regretted 
that the Commission had spent a considerable 
amount of time in considering its relationship 
with non-governmental organizations, since that 
was clearly the prerogative of the Council. He 
noted with satisfaction that the Commission made 
a recommendation concerning co-operation with 
the Inter-American Commission of Women, and 
he agreed with the United Kingdom represen
tative that every effort should be made by the 
Commission to prevent duplicatio~ of the work 
of other commissions and of the specialized 

- agencies. He reserved the right to make addi
tional remarks in the Committee. 

Mrs. URALOVA (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic), Rapporteur of the Commission on 
the Status of Women, thanked the Council for 
the careful consideration which it had accorded 
to the Commission's report. 

She remarked that the United Kingdom pro
posal was lmexpected; it appeared at first glance 
to represent a backward step, in view of the 
recommendations adopted by the Commission. 
The work of the Commission should not, she 
felt, be limited to the consideration of educa
tional opportunities for women; it should extend 
into the political, social and economic fields as 
well. She hoped that the question would receive 
serious consideration by the appropriate com
mittee of the Economic and Social Council. 

The Commission had been guided in its work 
' by its terms of reference as established by the 

Council. All its members had taken an active 
part in the discussions, in particular in the im
plementation of the General Assembly resolution 
on the politjcal rights of women, as. proposed in 
paragraph 26 of the Commission's report'. 

The reason why the Commission wished to 
have answers to its questionnaire by 1 June 
194 7 was that the next session of the Commis
sion was to be held in June, and it was desirable 
to have the material ready by that time. 

Mrs. Uralova stated that, after a careful dis
cussion of its programme, the Commission had 
decided that it should assist in the final liquida
tion of fascism and in the promotion of inter
national collaboration for world peace, which 
would make renewed aggression impossible. To 
achieve those aims it would first be necessary to 
improve the status of women everywhere and to 
establish full equality of rights. 

Mrs. Uralova briefly outlined the aims of the 
Commission in the political, civil, social, eco
nomic and educational fields, as contained- in 

1 See Supplement No. 2, page 6. 

161 

La Commission a propose d' encourager dans 
chaque pays Ia creation d'un organisme de coor
dination des organisati0ns non gouvernementales 
qui s'interessent aux questions relatives a Ia 
femme. L'orateur n'est pas d'accord avec la 
Commission sur ce point. De telles mesures 
nuiraient a Ia liberte d'action des institutions 
privees et benevoles. Si ces organisations deman
dent le status consultatif, leurs demandes seront 
examinees par le Comite ONG du Conseil a qui 
cette tache a ete confiee. M. Stinebower regrette 
que Ia Commission ait passe tant de temps a 
etudier ses relations avec les organisations non 
gouvernementales, cette tache etant manifeste
ment du ressort du Conseil. II enregistre avec 
satisfaction Ia recommandation adoptee par la 
Commission en vue d'assurer Ia collaboration 
avec Ia Commission interamericaine des femmes, 
et il est d'accord avec le representant du 
Royaume-Uni pour penser que Ia Commission 
doit faire de son mieux pour ques ses travaux ne 
£assent pas double emploi avec ceux des autres 
commissions et des institutions specialiseees. 

Mme. URALOVA (Republique socialiste sovie
tique de Bielorussie), Rapporteur de Ia Commis
sion de Ia condition de Ia femme, remercie le 
Conseil d'avoir etudie avec soin le rapport de 
Ia Commission. · 

Elle fait remarqtJ.er le caractere inattendu de 
Ia proposition du Royaume-Uni. Cette 9-erniere 
semble, au premier abord, marquer un recul par 
rapport aux recommandations que la Commis
sion a adoptees. La Commission ne doit pas se 
horner a etudier les possibilites d'education of
fertes aux femmes; elle doit etendre son action 
aux domaines politique, social et -economique. 
Mme Uralova espere que le comite competent 
du Conseil economique et social accordera Ia plus 
grande attentiQn a cette question. 

Pour Ia conduite de ses travaux, Ia Commis
sion a suivi le mandat que lui a assigne le Con
seil. Tous ses membres ont pris une part active 
aux debats, notamment pour la mise en reuvre 
d~ Ia resolution de I' Assemblee generale sur les 
droits politiques de Ia femme, qui figure au para
graphe 26 du rappoJ1 de la Commission1

• 

Si la Commission desire obtenir des rep~nses 
a son questionnaire pour le 1er juin 1947, c'est 
parce que sa prochaine sessi0n doit se tenir en 
juin; il est souhaitable que Ia documentation soit 
prete a ce moment-Ia. . 

Mme Uralova declare que Ia Commission, 
apres avoir etudie son programme avec soin, a 
decide d'aider a faire disparaitre les derniers ves
tiges du fascisme et a favoriser Ia collaboration 
internationale pour la paix du monde, afin de 
rendre impossible toute nouvelle agression. A 
cette fin, il faut d'abord ameliorer Ia condition 
de Ia femme dans tous les pays, et etablir l'en
tiere egalite des droits. 

Mme Uralova indique brievement quels sont 
les buts de Ia Commission dans les domaines 
politique, civil, social, economique et dans le 

1 Voir le Supplement No 2, page 6. 



the report. She called the attention of the Coun
cil to the amended terms of reference of the 
Commission proposed in chapter II of the report, 
and hoped that those terms of reference would 
be accepted by the Council. The Commission 

· desired to assist the Commission on Human 
Rights in the work of establishing the interna
tional bill of rights. In chapters IV, V, VI and 
IX of the report, the Commission stated its 
views concerning co-operation with other bodies 
with a view to avoiding duplication of effort. 

Mrs. U ralova expressed the hope that the 
Council would approve the report, which had 
been unanimously adopted by the Commission. 

The meeting rose at 6.20 p.m. 

SEVENTY-SIXTH MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Thursday, 20 March 1947, at 11 a.m. 

President: Sir Ramaswami M UDALIAR (India). 

46. Discussion of the report of the Popu
lation Commissi~n (document E/267Y 

In presenting the report of the Population 
Commission to the Economic and Social Coun
cil, the PRESIDENT expressed his appreciation of 
the Commission's careful and excellent worR. 

Mr. AReA PARRO (Peru), who had served as 
Chairman of the Population Commission, paid 
tribute to the professional ability and the fine 
spirit of co-operation of the members of the 
Commission,' and the representatives of other 
commissions of the Council and of the specialized 
agencies. He said that the discussions in the Com
mission had demonstrated the importance of 

' demographic research in the solution of many 
international problems. 

The first session of the Commission had been 
· noteworthy for the atmosphere of complete in
ternational harmony which had prevailed, and 
for the Commission's decision to approach its 
work realistically and not to spread its efforts 

, too thinly over the broad problems within its 
competence. The two guiding principles had 
been: first, that there was need for a somid 
technical basis of facts before more important 
work could be done; and secondly, that the 
Commission's work should meet the immediate, 
practical needs of the United Nations, the Mem
ber Governments, and the specialized agencies. 

The problem of collecting basic data had 
therefore been of major interest. Realizing the 
importance of accurate population estimates and 

1 See Official Records of the Economic and Social 
Council, Second Year, Fourth Session, Supplement No._ 5. 

domaine de !'education tels qu'ils sont contenus 
dans le rapport. Elle attire !'attention du Conseil 
sur le mandat de la Commission tel qu'il figure, 
sous sa forme amendee, dans le chapitre II du 
r~pport, et elle espere que le Cqnseill'accepter~. 
La Commission desire aider la Commission des 
droits de l'homme a etablir la declaration inter
nationale des droits. Les chapitres IV, V, VI, et 
IX du rapport contiennent les vues de Ia Com
mission sur Ia collaboration a realiser avec 
d'autres. organismes en vue d'eviter le double 
emploi. 

Mme Uralova exprime l'espoir que le CQnseil 
approuvera ce rapport que la Commission a 
adopte a l'unanimite. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 20 . 

. SOIXANTE-SEIZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le jeudi 20 mars 1947, a 11 heures. 

President: Sir Ramaswami M UDALIAR (In de) . 

.,6. · Discussion sur le rapport de Ia Com
mission de Ia population (document 
E/267Y 

En presentant au Conseil economique et social 
le rapport de la Commission de Ia population, le 
PRESIDENT declare qu'il apprecie vivement !'ex
cellent et minutieux travail accompli par Ia 
Commission. 

M. ARCA PARR6 (Perou), qui a preside les 
travaux de Ia Commission de la population, rend 
hommage a la competence professionnelle et au 
bel esprit de collaboration dont ont fait preuve 
les membres de la Commission, les representants 
des autres commissions du Conseil et les repre
sentants des ins~itutions specialisees. Les debats 
de la Commission ont clairement demontre 
!'importance que presentait la recherche en. 
matiere de demographie pour resoudre un grand 
nombre de problemes internationaux. . 

La premiere session de Ia Commission a 
merite de retenir 1' attention pour la parfaite 
harmonie internationale qui a regne au cours 
des debats et pour la decision qu'a prise Ia Com
mission d'aborder son travail avec realisme et de 
traiter les vastes problemes qui relevent de sa 
competence sans trop disperser ses efforts. Les 
deux principes !firecteurs ont ete les suivants: 
premierement, il est necessaire de disposer de 
solides donp.ees techniques de base pour pouvoir 
entreprendre un travail plus important; et, 
deuxiemement, le travail de la Commission doit 
repondre aux besoias pratiques et immediats de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, des Gouverne
ments Membres et des institutions specialisees. 

Le probleme du rassemblement des donnees 
de base a done presente un interet majeur. Re
connaissant combien il est important de disposer 

· 1 Voir les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil lcono
mique et social, Deuxieme Annee, Quatrienie Session, 
Supplement No 5. 

162 




